
Administrative Offices 
4600 So. Weber River Drive 

Riverdale, Utah  84405 

 
 
 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Riverdale City Planning Commission held Tuesday, November 13, 
2007 at 6:30 pm at the Riverdale Civic Center, 4600 South Weber Drive.      
 
Members Present: 
   Don Farr, Chairman 
   David Gailey, Member 
   Don Hunt, Member 

Allen Miller, Member 
Norm Searle, Member 

   Bart Stevens, Member 
   Kathy Tanner, Member 
 
Others Present:  
   Randy Daily, Community Development Director 
   Jeff Woody, City Inspector 
   Marie Alvord, Planning Commission Secretary 
   Approximately six (6) Citizens 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Farr called the meeting to order and welcomed all those in attendance.  He acknowledged that all 
other members were present.  
 
 
2. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF THE MEETING MINUTES 
Comments and changes were requested in the preplanning meeting. 
 
Motion:  Commissioner Miller moved to approve the Preplanning and Regular meeting minutes of 

October 23, 2007 with corrections noted and waive the reading of the minutes.  
Commissioner Gailey seconded the motion.   

 
Call the Question: 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
3. CONSIDERATION AND RECOMMENDATION OF LOT SUBDIVISION AMENDMENT FOR 
ANDERSON/STANGER PROPERTY, LOCATED 5242 SOUTH 1150 WEST. 
Mr. Daily noted that the two lots are located in the R-1-6 zone and with the subdivision meets all frontage and 
area requirements of that zone and 10-21-12. He continued to note that the subdivision has been prepared and 
complies with the Weber County Recorder’s Office requirements and that his recommendation is to approve 
the property line change for recording of the subdivision. Commissioner Hunt asked what the setback of the 
proposed garage would be off of 1050 West. Mr. John Anderson said it would be 15 ft from the retaining wall 
to allow for fruit trees.  
 
Motion:  Commissioner Hunt moved to recommend approval to the City Council of the lot subdivision 
amendment for Anderson/Stanger property, located 5242 South 1150 West. Commissioner Tanner seconded 
the motion. 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting 2 November 13, 2007 

 
Call the Question: 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Chairman Farr excused himself from the meeting at this time due to a personal conflict of interest with the next 
two items and turned the meeting over to Chair pro tempore Hunt. 
 
4. CONSIDERATION AND RECOMMENDATION OF FINAL SITE PLAN FOR VALUE PLACE 
HOTEL, LOCATED 4899 SOUTH 1500 WEST. 
Mr. Daily informed the Planning Commission that the final site plan has met City requirements pertaining to 
lot coverage, parking, landscaping, setback, access roads, and fire hydrant placement. He noted that the City 
Engineer and Public Works Director have both reviewed the site plan and have issued letters of approval. Mr. 
Daily mentioned that there are some issues unresolved with the engineering of the project and that they will 
not change the site plan. All issues pertaining to the engineering will be resolved prior to City Council 
approval. Recommendation is for the Planning Commission to recommend final approval and send to the City 
Council. Chair pro tempore Hunt noted that he has the copies of the City Engineer and Public Works Director 
letters, he mentioned that he read the City Engineer’s letter in the preplanning meeting and continued to read 
the letter from Public Works Director, Mr. Lynn Moulding (see Attachment A).  
 
Commissioner Tanner noted on the site plan that is shows areas to be landscaped with native wild flowers. 
Value Place Representative, Ms. Shelli Swan noted that the issue has already been addressed and she has a 
letter from the landscape engineer noting that all native grass and wild flower will be changed to sod or green 
ground cover. Commissioner Searle noted the lack of lighting on the west side of the building. Ms. Swan said 
that it is company standard to have wall pack lighting on all sides of the building and it is sufficient to 
illuminate the parking area. A general discussion was held on building height, number of rooms, exterior 
finish, landscaping, maintenance of undeveloped land, and signage.  
 
Chair pro tempore Hunt noted that there are canal water rights that run through the property and asked if they 
have been taken into consideration. Mr. Daily said that Value Place Hotels understands that the canal water 
must continue through the property and must serve the water users down stream. He noted that the water route 
will be placed on the engineering plan. Chair pro tempore Hunt said it is not addressed on the site plan and 
asked if it has been addressed. Ms. Swan noted that their engineer has been in contact with Mr. Ellis and they 
are currently working out the particulars of the water flow. Chair pro tempore Hunt requested that Mr. Ellis 
address the Planning Commission. Ditch Master, Mr. Brent Ellis confirmed that he is in contact with Value 
Place Hotel’s engineer and the Value Place development is not his reason for attending and voicing frustration, 
he is concerned with the Rocky Mountain Power not adequately addressing the canal issues. He voiced the 
following concerns: 

• If Value Place develops in the spring and the importance of water use at that time 
• The hillside with several different pipelines that need to be addressed 
• Lack of communication with Rocky Mountain Power for extension of water flow from Value Place 

property and the substation 
• Live stream that runs through the area needs to be addressed 

 
Mr. Daily informed the Planning Commission that there are not any easements on the property for the canal 
but as historic water (which the canal is) this must continue to service share holders.  Mr. Daily noted that he is 
under the impression that the water rights are protected under Utah State Law and will ask the City Attorney to 
look into the issue and if the city can be of help in this matter.   
 
Motion:  Commissioner Searle moved to recommend approval to the City Council of the final site plan for 
Value Place Hotels, located at 4899 South 1500 West with the stipulation that all outstanding engineering 
issues be resolved and for the City Council/Staff take into consideration water rights and water flow on that 
property. Commissioner Miller seconded the motion. 
 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting 3 November 13, 2007 

Call the Question: 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
5. CONSIDERATION AND RECOMMENDATION OF COMMERCIAL SUBDIVISION 
AMENDMENT FOR BROOK HAVEN DEVELOPMENT, LOCATED 4905 SOUTH 1500 WEST. 
Mr. Daily reviewed with the Planning Commission the recent approval of the amended site plan to allow two 
additional buildings, making a total of five buildings.  Five properties that have the buildings and one 
additional property which includes all common area will be shown on Weber County Records as separate 
parcels. Mr. Daily noted that the common area will be regulated by CC&Rs and enforced by an Association or 
Board. He said the Conditions, Covenants and Restrictions will have to work out snow plowing, parking lot 
repair, landscape maintenance, and building use, and should also include the Developers Agreement. He said 
the subdivision amendment will not change the site plan but make it six separate parcels with individual tax 
identification numbers to allow for the sale of the buildings. Discussion was held on the ownership of the 
different parcels, association responsibilities and makeup. It was noted that the ownership will be for the 
building itself and everything else will be considered common area.   
 
 
Motion: Commissioner Miller moved to recommend approval to the City Council of the commercial 
subdivision amendment for Brook Haven Development, located 4905 South 1500 West. Commissioner Searle 
seconded the motion. 
 
Call the Question: 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Chair pro tempore Hunt turned the meeting over to Chairman Farr. 
 
6. DISCUSSION AND REVIEW OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO TITLE 10: ZONING 
AND SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS, SPECIFICALLY 10-14-12: NONRESIDENTIAL AND 
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS AND 10-28: RESIDENTIAL 
LANDSCAPING. SET PUBLIC HEARING. 
Mr. Daily noted that this is a concept draft of changes to the landscape ordinances pertaining to both 
nonresidential and residential. He read from the executive summary given to the Planning Commission: “This 
is a proposal to change the landscape ordinances for commercial and residential development. The reason for 
this proposed change is to hopefully help conserve water by reducing exterior water consumption. Because of 
the growth we have experienced state wide future water demands is a legitimate topic that concerns all 
municipalities throughout the state. Water conservation is relevant to our future. Mr. Daily reviewed the 
changes. 
 
Chairman Farr asked why the recommendation is to reduce landscaping from 20% to 10%. Mr. Daily noted 
that the surrounding cities only require 10% and the 20% is excessive in the amount required. He noted that it 
is not site specific and that staff is looking at the future needs of the City concerning water availability to 
irrigate landscaping. Commissioner Stevens did not agree; he felt that perhaps the 20% requirement was 
excessive but 10% is not enough. In his opinion, the landscaping along Riverdale Road looks good and he 
would not like to reduce it to the 10%. Discussion was held on the UDOT widening of Riverdale Road and the 
loss of landscaping due to the project. Commissioner Gailey recalled that he had read about the State of Utah 
considering more strict water use laws and mentioned that it is good for the City to be reviewing the landscape 
requirements. Commissioner Tanner said the new developments in the City have improved the look of the City 
compared to the older established developments with less landscape and going back to less landscaping would 
be less desirable. In her opinion, some of the most beautiful landscaping is done with rocks and indicated that 
landscaping may be done that requires no water usage. Another issue with property owners is the amount of 
land used for landscaping that takes away from what could be necessary parking. 
 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting 4 November 13, 2007 

Mr. Daily said this item is to open discussion to review different possibilities and discuss future needs of the 
City. He mentioned another possibility would be to require 15% landscaping and allow 5% to be rocks or 
hardscape and the other 10% drought tolerant foliage.  Commissioner Hunt noted that his concern is with 
eliminating landscaping. Commissioner Stevens informed the Planning Commission that he had previously 
worked for the City of San Diego during the extreme drought years and noted that cities have the potential to 
be extremely innovative in water conservation when faced with extreme situations such as the use of grey 
water for irrigation. He said change starts with the leadership and the review with solicitation for ideas is a 
good start. Commissioner Searle noted that they all have concerns with water conservation. In his opinion, the 
recent developments have been really nice partly due to the 20% landscape requirement and noted that there 
are other ways to landscape besides with grass. He requested to stay with the 20% landscaping but require 
plants that are drought tolerant. Commissioner Searle said plants create a safer and better work place 
environment by adding more oxygen to the air. Commissioner Miller said he likes the 20% landscaping and 
suggested the City offer more innovative options to developers in the type of landscape required. 
Commissioner Gailey asked if it would be appropriate to regulate the type of landscape irrigation to maximize 
water conservation. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Miller moved to set a public hearing. 
 
Discussion on the Motion: Commissioner Tanner asked if it was necessary to set a public hearing at that time. 
It was indicated that the Planning Commission may have more time to review and discuss the item before a 
public hearing needed to be set. Commissioner Miller retracted his motion. 
 
Mr. Daily said the cities around Riverdale City require half of the landscape, if 10% is on the low end and 20% 
high end perhaps the City can come in the middle and give more flexibility in decorative hardscape and require 
water saving irrigation systems. Commissioner Hunt asked how many businesses do not come into Riverdale 
City due to the landscaping requirement. Mr. Daily noted that it has not been a deterrent for businesses but 
there are complaints and we have allowed flexibility in hardscape concepts. Commissioner Hunt asserted that 
they should stick to a standard that makes Riverdale City a better place to live, not set a public hearing tonight 
but further discuss options that help keep the high quality of development. Commissioner Miller asked if a 
public hearing would be required if the dialogue was changed in the ordinance. It was noted that a public 
hearing would be required. Commissioner Farr asked if the ordinance could be sent to the City Council for 
comments and direction. Mr. Daily said he would prefer the Planning Commission to review and make the 
amendments and additions if desired. He noted that it is a Title 10 amendment and is the Planning 
Commission’s responsibility. Commissioner Farr stated that if they have something good, do not change it. 
Commissioner Hunt said it was good but the ordinance can be improved.  
 
Commissioner Searle recommended keeping the 20% landscape requirement but changing the language to 
encourage desert landscape. Commissioner Tanner requested that the Planning Commission postpone a 
decision therefore they can further review the ordinance for possible changes. Commissioner Stevens said 
change begins with leadership and the City has set precedence by the way the 300 West project and the 4400 
South roundabouts were completed with drought tolerant plants. In his opinion, the ordinance does not need to 
be changed; direction should come from staff concerning type of landscaping. Commissioner Tanner felt it is 
necessary to stay with the 20% landscaping requirement but not allow stamped concrete as a form of 
hardscape. Commissioner Miller noted that the new residential development park strip look nice with bark and 
trees and said concrete is not an answer but the City needs to give more options and expand the type of trees 
allowed. Chairman Farr directed staff and Planning Commission to further study and review this item and to 
place it on a future meeting agenda. 
 
 
7. DISCRETIONARY BUSINESS 
No discretionary business was discussed. 
 
 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting 5 November 13, 2007 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to come before the Planning Commission, Commissioner Hunt moved to 
adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Miller seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. The 
meeting was adjourned at 7:56 pm. 
 
 
Attest: Approved: 
 
___________________________________ _________________________________ 
Marie Alvord, Don Farr, Chair 
Planning Commission Secretary                                         


